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MILSTEIN JACKSON
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ara D. Avila, State Bar No. 263213

savila@mifwlaw.com

Marc A. Castaneda, State Bar No. 299001

mcastaneda@mifwfaw.com _
1025 onstellation Blvd., Suite 1400

Los Angeles, CA 90067
Tel: (3108 396-9600
Fax: (310) 396-9635

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRCT OF CALIFORNIA

JAMES WEEKS, individually and on
behalf of all others situated:

Plaintiff,

VS.

LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, LLC, a
North Carolina limited liability
company, and DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. 2:19-cv-6828

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

I
I
I

Violations of the Consumer Legal
Remedies Act, Cal. Civ..88 1750t
seq

Violations of Unfair Competition Law
‘Unfair’ and ‘Fraudulent’ Prags,
Cal. Bus. & Prof. C88 17200¢t seq

Violations of Unfair Competition Law

‘Unlawful’ Prong, Cal. Bus. & Prof. (.

§8 17200¢t seq
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Plaintiff JAMES WEEKS (“Plaintiff”),by his undersigned counsel, on beh
of himself and all persons similarly satied, brings this Class Action Compla
against Defendant Lowe’s Home CentaisC (“Lowe’s” or “Defendant”). Plaintiff
alleges the following upon information andlieE except for those allegations th
pertain to Plaintiff, which are sad on Plaintiffspersonal knowledge:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiff, by and through undersignedursel, brings this action both ¢

his own behalf and on behalf the Class defined belowpmprised of all individuals

similarly situated within the State of Calrhia, to redress the unlawful and decept
practices employed by Lowe’s in connectiwith its sale ofhe herbicide Roundp
which contains the active ingredient glypates Glyphosate is known to be a CI3
2A herbicide, meaning it is pbably carcinogenic to humans.

2. Defendant markets, advertises, dmttes and sells vars formulations

of Roundufy which Plaintiff maintains are deféie, dangerous to human healt

unfit and unsuitable to be marketed anttlso commerce without proper warning
and directions as to the dangers associated with its use.

3. Defendant’s reckless, knowing, and/or willful omission of
carcinogenic and/or otherwise harmful components to Rolhpgulucts constitute
unlawful and deceptive business practicgslate California’s Consumer Legd
Remedies Act,_Cal. Civ. .C88 1750,et seq (the “CLRA”) and the Unfair
Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. @8 17200¢t seq (the “UCL").

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. Jurisdiction is proper in this Coysursuant to the Class Action Fairng

Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d) (“CAFA. Defendant is either sorporated and/or has i

principal place of business outside the estiait which Plaintiff and members of tf

proposed Class reside. Furthermore,dheme more than 100 Class Members and

amount-in-controversy exceeds $5,000,8R0lusive of interest and costs.
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5.  This Court has personal jurisdictioner Defendant becaa Defendant
a foreign limited liability company autha@ed to do business in California §
registered with the California SecretarySthte, and has sufficient minimum cont:
with California or otherwise intentionally aws itself of thelaws and markets {
California, through the salend distribution of its Round@roducts in California, t
render the exercise of jurisdiction the California courts permissible.

6.  Venue is proper in this Districinder 28 U.S.C. 81391(b) and (c) becg

Defendant’s improper conductleged in this complaint occurred in, was dire¢

from, and/or emanated from this judicdibtrict, because Defendant has caused

to Class Members residing in this distrieind/or because Defendant is subjec¢

personal jurisdiction in this district.
PARTIES

7. Plaintiff James Weeks is an individual resident of Oxnard, Californis
and a member of the Class alleged herein.

8. Defendant LOWE'S HOME CENTER LLC is a North Caroling
limited liability company, California Seciaty of State Registry No. 2013316102
in “active” status, with a pmcipal place of business Mooresville, North Carolina
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, LLC is an Asrican retail company specializirn
in home improvement and is engaged in ierketing, sale, and distribution of tl
herbicide Roundup®, with the active ingrext glyphosate. All formulations g
Roundup® are manufactured by non-partiesnshnto Company, Bayer Corporatiq
and/or Bayer AG.

9. Upon information and belief, Dendants DOES 1 through 100 g
subsidiaries, partners, or other entities thieate involved in the $a of the herbicidg
RoundufS. The true names and capacities & Befendants sued herein as DOE
through 100, inclusive, are currently unkrmowo Plaintiff, who therefore sues su
Defendants by fictitious nameBach of the Defendants signated herein as a DO

is legally responsible for thenlawful acts alleged hereiRlaintiff will seek leave of
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Court to amend this Complaint to reflebe true names and capacities of the DOE

Defendants when suatientities become known.

10. “Roundup” refers to all famulations of the Round{pproducts sold by
Defendant, including, but not limitetb, Roundup Landscape Weed Preven
Roundup Ready-To-Use ilker Il with Sure ShotWand, Roundup Ready-To-Us
Weed & Grass Killer Ill with Comfort Wiad, Roundup Ready-to-Use Weed & Gr:
Killer Il with Pump ‘N Go 2 Sprayer, Roundup Readp-Use Weed & Grass Kille
[ll, Roundup Precision Gel Weed & &ss Killer, Roundp for Lawns Bug
Destroyer, Roundup For LawReady-to-Use, Roundup For Lawri®eady-to-Spray
Roundup For LawnsReady-to-Spray, Roundup For LawrGoncentrate, Roundu
for Lawns Crabgrass Destroyerl, Rdup Ready-To-Use Maxontrol 365 with

Comfort Wand, Roundup ConcentrateAM Control 365, Roundup Ready-To-Us

Extended Control Weed & Grass Killer PNMgeed Preventer Il with Comfort Wan
Roundup Ready-To-Use Extended CohtMeed & Grass Killer Plus Wee
Preventer Il with Pump ‘N Go 2 Sprayé&koundup Ready-To4é Extended Contrg
Weed & Grass Killer Plus Weed Prewer |l with Trigge Sprayer, Rounduj
Concentrate Extended Control Weed &a6s Killer Plus Weed Preventer, Roung
Ready-To-Use Poison lvy Plus ToughuBh Killer with Trigger Sprayer, Roundu
Ready-To-Use Poison Ivy Plus ToughuBh Killer with Comfort Wand, Roundu
Concentrate Poison Ivy Plus Tough BruKiller, Roundup Wed & Grass Killern
Concentrate Plus, Roundup For Lay@®ncentrate, Roundup Weed & Grass Kil
Super Concentrate, Roundup Weed &a&x Killer Super Concentrate, Round
Concentrate MAX Control 365, Rounduponcentrate Extended Control Weed
Grass Killer Plus Weed Preventer, RoupdConcentrate Poison Ivy Plus Tou
Brush Killer, Roundup Pro No Leak PumBackpack Sprayer (4 Gallon), Round
Pro Sprayer for Commercial &42 or 3 Gallon), Roundudo Leak Pump Backpac
Sprayer (4 Gallon), Roundup Pro No LeakrpuBackpack Sprayer with Stainle

Steel Components and Deluxe Comfétarness (4 Gallon), Roundup Multi-Us
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Home and Garden Sprayer (1, 2, or 3ll@g, or any other formulation therec
containing the active ingredient glyphosate.

11. Defendant transacted and conddctbusiness within the State
California that relates to thélegations in this Complaint.

12. Defendant derived subsiidal revenue from goodsd products used i
the State of California.

13. Defendant purposefully availed itfebf the privilege of conducting
activities within the State of California, thussoking the benefitand protections o
its laws.

14. Defendant advertisend sell goods, specifically Roundup, in Ventt
County, California.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. Warnings on Roundup Products at Defendant’s Retail Locations are

Inadequate.

15. Roundup is sold at Lowe’s locatiortiroughout the United State
including California. Its labeling is notitared between manufact and points o
sale at Defendant’setail locations. An exemplargiure of the Roundup’s front labs

is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.”

16. As indicated on Roundup’s labelingyghosate is the active ingredignt

in Roundup.ld. Glyphosate is a nonselective hertbec that inhibits plant growtt
through interference with the production edgsential aromatic amino acids. It W
discovered to be an herbicide in 1970dawas first brought into the market
Roundup by Monsanto Company in 1974.

17. Roundup’s labeling provides certain mangs, such as, “Keep Out
Reach of Children” and “Caution.” But the gntentified hazard identified is that

may cause “moderate eye irritation.”

4
CLASS ACTIONCOMPLAINT

Df

_— S

ra

S,

1%

—

as

as

it




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N DN DN DN NN R P R R R R R R R e
w N o 0~ WN B O © 0 N O O~ W N B O

Case 2:19-cv-06828 Document 1 Filed 08/06/19 Page 6 of 24 Page ID #:6

18. This warning gives the false impression eye irritation is the only
posed by Roundup, when in fact, glyphosat&nswn to have links to cancer,
discussed more fully herein.

19. Defendant thus fails tevarn consumers of the potential carcinoge
risks of using Roundup.

20. Defendant’'s conduct is especially egjoris considering it also fails {
include proper use instructions for Roundup.

21. As a retail distributor of Roundupefendant is provided a Safety Dg
Sheet (“SDS™ by the manufacturer, which provileletailed information as to th
products’ hazards.

22. The SDS for Roundup daises, “[ilnhalation and skin contact &
expected to be the primary routesoatupational exposure to glyphosate.”

23. Despite its knowledge of the SDBefendant does not warn consum
they may be exposed to glyphostiteugh inhalation and skin contact.

24. Defendant further omits proper use mstions, e.g. advising consume
to use a gas mask respirator when using Roundup.

25. Reasonable consumers, like Ptdin who have purchased Roundy
would not have done so had they knowntsfcarcinogenic risks, or had Defends
provided a warning on how to minimize these risks.

26. Defendant was aware of the presandl substantial a@er to consumer
while using or misusing the Product in an intended and reasonably foreseeal]

and has not disclosed the pdtahrisks to consumers.

! The Hazard Communication StandardC®) (29 CFR 1910.1200(g)), revised| i

2012, requires that the cheral manufacturer, distributor, or importer provide Sa
Data Sheets (SDSs) (formerly MSDSs or téfel Safety Data Sheets) for e:
hazardous chemical to downstream ss& communicate information on thg
hazards. The information contained in t8BS is largely the same as the MS
except now the SDSs are required to besented in a consistent user-friendly,
section format. This brief provides guida&nto help workers who handle hazard

chemicals to become familiar with therfmat and understand géhcontents of the

DSs.
§Material Safety Data Shed®®poundup Weed & Grass Killer 1 Ready-To-Use, #7
EPA REG. NO.: 71995-23PN: 7037 (October 31, 2000).
5
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B. The IARC Classification of Glyphosate.

27. The International Agency foResearch on Cancer (“IARC"), 4
intergovernmental cancer agency witkine World Health Organization ("WHO”) o
the United Nations, was tasked in 201Ghwconducting and coordinating reseat
into the causes of cancer it pertained to glyphosate.

28. In March 2015, an IARC “WorkingGroup” of 17 experts from 1
countries convened to evataaseveral insecticidesand herbicides, including
diazinon, tetrachlorvinphos, malathion, ghran, and glyphosate. The evaluati
was based on a cumulative review of all iy available and peinent scientific
studies. Some of the studies pertained twpfeeexposed to through their jobs, such
farmers. Others were experimental sésdon cancer and cancer-related effect
experimental systems. The IARC WorkiGgoup’s full monogrph was published o
July 29, 2015.

29. In its monograph, the IARC WorkinGroup classified glyphosate ag

Class 2A herbicidewhich means it is probably carcinogenic to huménsoncluded

non-Hodgkin lymphoma was most assted with glyphosate exposure.

30. The IARC also found that glyphate caused DNA and chromoson
damage in human cells.

31. The IARC’s conclusions were consistewith scientific development
that had occurred in prior decades.

C. Early Studies on Roundup’sCarcinogenic Properties.

32. Defendant should have been a® of glyphosate’s carcinogeni

properties before or durindpe Class Period (the foyears preceding the filing G
this Complaint).

33. On March 4, 1985, a group of thenkronmental Protection Agency]
(“EPA”) Toxicology Branch conducted study to evaluate the potential oncoge

(i.e., potential to cause cancer) r@spes on mice. The group published
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memorandum, which “classifie@lyphosate as a Categoryo@cogen,” meaning it is
a possible human carcinogen.

34. The findings of the 1985 EPA studyere initially challenged by th
EPA in 1991, which published a Memadum entitled, “Second Peer Review
Glyphosate.” The Memorandumdhanged glyphosate’s classification to Groug
(evidence of non-carcinogenicity for fmans). Yet two peer review committ
members did not concur with theorxlusions, and the Memorandum its
“emphasizedhowever, that designation of agent in Group E is based on t
available evidence at the twmof evaluation and should not be interpreted &
definitive conclusion that the agerwill not be a carcinogen under af
circumstances.”

35. However, further studieand developments indiet glyphosate indee
posed (and still poses) a defingarcinogenic effect on humans.

36. In 1996, the New York Attomy General sued MONSANT(
COMPANY for false and misleading adtismg by touting its glyphosate-bas
Roundup products as, e.g., “safer thablgasalt” and "practilly non-toxic" to
mammals, birds, and fish.

37. On November 19, 1996, Monsanentered into an Assurance
Discontinuance with New York Attorney Geag in which Monsanto agreed to alt
the advertising, removing from advertisemts that represent, directly or |
implication, that the weed killers wel@odegradable and environmentally friend
Monsanto also agreed toyp&50,000 toward New York’s costs of pursuing the ci
At the time, New York waghe only state to object to the advertising claims.

38. In 1997, Chris Clementgt al. published a study entitled, “Genotoxici

of Select Herbicides ifRana catesbeiandadpoles Using the Alkaline Single-Ce

Gel DNA Electrophoresis (Comet) Assay.” fi@doxicity refers to the property ¢
chemical agents which causemage to genetic infoation within a cell causing

mutations, which may lead to cancer. Glements’ publication, tadpoles we
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exposed to various herbicides, inclgliRoundup, for a 28eur period. Roundup
treated tadpoles showed “significant DNilamage when compared with unexpof
control animals.”

39. In 1999, Lennart Hardell and MikaEliksson published a study entitle
“A Case—Control Study of Non-Hodgkin hyphoma and Exposure to Pesticide

which consisted of a population-based casetrol study in northern and midd

Sweden encompassing 442 cases andetvdas many controls was performe

Exposure data were ast@ned by comprehensive questionnaires, and
guestionnaires were supplemented by pietae interviews. The results indicat
exposure to glyphosate andhet herbicides yielded increased risks for Non-Hodg
Lymphoma (“NHL").

40. In 2002, Julie Marc,et al. published a study entitled, “Pestici
Roundup Provokes Cell Diven Dysfunction at the Level of CDK1/Cyclin

of sea urchins. It further noted therelgulations of cell cycle checkpoints alieectly
linked to genomic instability, which can gea& diseases and cause cancer.
findings led to the conclusn Roundup “causes changescll cycle regulation tha
may raise questions about the effefcthis pesticide on human health.”

41. In 2003, A. J. De Roos, et gublished a study entitled, “Integratiy
assessment of multiple pesticides as risk factors for non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma 3
men,” which “[rleported use of severaldividual pesticides was associated w
increased NHL incidence, including . .. glyphosate. A subanalysis of the
‘potentially carcinogenic’ pesticides suggekte positive trend of risk with exposu
to increasing numbers.”

42. In 2004, Julie Marcet al. published another study entitled, “Glyphos3g
based pesticides affect cell cycle regola” In that study, which tested Roundyi
3plus on sea urchin eggs, determined phlysate-based pesticides are clearly

human health concern by inhalation in the mitgi of spraying,” given the “moleculg

8
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link between glyphosate andliceycle dysregulation.” It observed, “roundup may
related to increased frequey of non-Hodgkin’s lymphma among farmers, citin
the study by A. J. De Roogt al

43. In 2008, Mikael Erikssonet al. published a study entitled, “Pestici

exposure as risk factor for NHL includj histopathological subgroup analysis

based on a case-contrstudy of exposure to various piegles as a risk factor fg

NHL. Eriksson’s study strengthened pr@ys associations tweeen glyphosate and

NHL.

44. In 2009, France’s highest court rdi¢ghat Monsanto had not told th
truth about the safety ofdendup. The French court affied an earlier judgment thi
Monsanto had falsely adverid its herbicide Roundup as “biodegradable” and th
“left the soil clean.”

45. Also in 2009, Nora Benachour andl&s-Eric Seralini published a stud
entitled, “Glyphosate formulations induce aprgi$ and necrosis in human umbilic
embryonic, and placental cells,” which exasd the effects of four differer

Roundup formulations on human umbilicambryonic, and placental cells—

be

t
at it

55

y
al,

t

at

dilution levels far below agriculturarecommendations. The study found the

formations caused cell death in a fewutsin a cumulative manner, caused DI

damage, and found that the formulations lthcell respiration. In addition, it wa

shown the mixture of the components uasdRoundup adjuvants, particularly POk

(polyoxyethyleneamine)amplified the action of the glyphosatdhe Roundup

adjuvants actually changed rhan cell permeability and @éneased the toxicity of

glyphosate alone.

D. Glyphosate-Based Herbicides Including Roundup, are Banned
Throughout the World.
46. Following the IARC’sreport on glyphosate, several countries h

iIssued outright bans or restrictioos glyphosate herbicides, including Roundup

9
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47. In May 2015, the Netherlands ozed all non-commercial use
glyphosate.  See https://www.collective-evaition.com/2015/05/30/why-the
netherlands-just-banned-monsangbgshosate-based-herbicides/.

48. In 2016, Italy adopted a law prohilmg the use of glyphosate in arg
frequented by the public or by "vulneralgioups" including children and the eldel
and in the pre-harvest phase in agriculture. See
https://www.soilassociation.org/news/2046gust/italy-banseixic-glyphosate/.

49. In June 2017, the Flemish govermmeapproved a ban on glyphosate
individual-use. See https://www.brusselstimesam/all-news/belgium-all
news/43150/flemish-government-approves-on-glyphosate-for-individuals/.

50. In September 2018, the agriculturenmstry of the Czech Republic stats
the country would ban the blanket use ofpflosate as a weetler and as a drying
agent. See  https://phys.org/news/2018-@2ech-republic-restrict-glyphosat
weedkiller.html. The ban came tn effect on January 1, 2019See
http://www.arc2020.eu/czech-out-thigundabout-way-to-not-ban-roundup/.

51. In October 2018, the Indian statef Punjab banned the sale
glyphosate. See https://www.thehindu.com/newsational/other-states/punjal
government-bans-sale-of-heclule/article25314146.ece. Ana February of 2019
the Indian state of Kerala followed sugsuing a ban on the sale, distribution and
of glyphosate Seehttps://www.thenewsminute.com/article/kerala-government-b
glyphosate-deadly-weed-killer-96220.

52. In January 2019, French authms banned the sale of Round
following a court ruling that regulators faileto take safety concerns into accol
when clearing the widely used herbicide. See
https://www.france24.com/en/20190116ewdkiller-roundup-baned-france-after-
court-ruling. In April 2019, a French apals court ruled Bayer's Monsanto busing
was liable for the health problemsf a farmer who inhaled Roundugbee

fhttps://www.insurancejournal.com/newgsémational/2019/4/11/523456.htm.
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53. In March 2019, Vietham announcedhas banned the import of 3

glyphosate-based herbicideSee https://sustainablepulse.com/2019/03/25/vietn{

bans-import-of-glyphosate-herbicideseafuis-cancer-trial-verdict/#.XS-xCT9Kh9Q.

54. On July 2, 2019, Austria’'s lower house of parliament passed &

banning all uses of glyphosate. Accorditg recent reports it is likely to pas

Austria’s  upper house and is poised to become lavkee
https://www.reuters.com/article/us-austglgphosate/austrian-parliament-backs-el
first-total-ban-of-weedkilleglyphosate-idiSKCN1TX1JR.

55. Several municipalitiesral regions in Spain, the United Kingdom, a
the United States, have also banned glyphosate herbicides.
E. Monsanto Loses Thre Verdicts after Roundup isFound to Cause Cancer

in Humans.

56. On August 10, 2018, a unamous California jury inJohnson v.
Monsanto Co.No. CGC16550128 (Cal. Super. Ct., Cnty. of Sheld MONSANTO
COMPANY’s Roundup and Ranger Pro herttes were unsafe and were
substantial factor in causing harm to thaimiiff. The juryalso found MONSANTO
COMPANY failed to adequately warn custera of the risks associated with
Roundup and stronger Ranger Products, and that the mpany acted with malic
or oppression.

57. On March 27, 2019, a unanimous California jury Hardemon v.
Monsanto Cq. No. 3:16-mc-80232 (N.D. Cal.) found MONSANTO COMPAN

nd

Y

liable for failing to warn Roundup could csai cancer, liable for negligence, and

liable in a design defect claim.
58. On May 13, 2019, a California g found MONSANTO COMPANY

likely caused a couple’s cancer Rilliod v. Monsanto Co.No. RF17862702 (Cal.

Super. Ct., Cnty. of Alameda). The juiyund on a preponderance of the evide
Roundup was a significant contributing faicin causing the plaintiff's NHL.

I
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F. Plaintiff's Purchase of Roundup from Defendant.

59. Plaintiff routinely purchased Roundup Ready-to-Use Weed & Gr3
Killer product during the Class Periddom a Lowe’s retail location in Ventur
County, California. Plaintiff recallpaying approximatel$12-$15 per bottle.

60. When Plaintiff purchased Roundup, nioig on the product’s label or i
Defendant’s advertising, magkng (including weekly adsnailers and in-store Poir
of Sale (POS) displays) madey indication that the product or its ingredie
contained any carcinogenic agents or posed the risk of cancer.

61. Had Plaintiff had known the carmgenic properties of Roundup and
links to cancer at the time of puiade, he would not have bought it.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS
62. Plaintiff brings this class action muant to Rule 23(b)(2) and 23(b)(

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure loghalf of himself and all members of t

following Class (the “Class”):

All persons who purchased, inCalifornia, at least one Roundup

product from Lowe’s, for personal use and not for re-sale.

63. Subject to additional information abbed through further investigatig
and discovery, the foregoiragfinition of the Class malye expanded amarrowed by
amendment.

64. Specifically excluded from the propos€ithass is Defendant, its officer
directors, agents, trustees, parents, ohild corporations, trusts, representatiV
employees, successors, assigns, or otheopegrer entities relateto or affiliated

with Defendant and/or its officers and/oreditors, or any of them. Also excluds

from the proposed Class are the Court, tbar€s immediate family and Court staff

Federal Rules of Civil Prodare, Rule 23(a) Factors

65. Numerosity. Membership in the Class 0 numerous that separs

joinder of each member is impracticabléhe precise number of Class members i
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unknown at this time but can be readdgtermined from Defendant’s recorg
Plaintiff reasonably estimatesatithere are tens dfiousands of persons in the Clas

66. Adequacy of Representation Plaintiff will fairly and adequately
represent and protect the interests of thenbers of the Class. Plaintiff has retain
counsel highly experienced in complesnsumer class actiditigation and intendg
to prosecute this action vigorously. Pl#inis a member of the Class describ
herein and does not have interests antagionto, or in conflict with, the othe
members of the Class.

67. Typicality. Plaintiff's claims are typical athe claims of the members
the Class. Plaintiff and all members thie Class purchased Defendant's Roun
products which fail to didose the carcinogenic propegi®f Roundup and/or it

active ingredient glyphosate and fail to provide proper use instructions.

68. Existence and Predominance of Gamon Questions of Law and Fact.

There are numerous and substantial questidriaw and fact common to all CIg
Members sufficient to satisfy Rule 23( and that control this litigation a
predominate over any individual issues forgmses of Rule 23(b)(3). Included witl
the common questions are:
a. Whether the Roundup products (and/their ingredients) conta
carcinogenic properties and/or poses a risk of cancer;
b. Whether the existing labels on tReundup product&ere adequate;
c. Whether Defendant misrepresented alethto disclose material facts
Plaintiff and Class members regiegl the carcinogenic properties
Roundup and its ingredients;
d. Whether Defendant’s failure to waRlaintiff and members of the Clg
of Roundup’s carcinogenic propegieis material to reasonal

consumers;

e. Whether Defendant’s marketing, dibution and/or sale of Roundup] i

likely to deceive reasonable consumers;

13
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f. Whether Defendant’s marketing,stiibution and/or sale of Roundd
caused Plaintiffs and the Class to suffer economic harm;

g. Whether Defendant violated Calrhia Civil Code section 1756t sed.

h. Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
section 17200et seq.

I. Whether Plaintiff and the Class a¥atitled to injunctive relief requiring

Defendant to disclose Roundup’s camgenic properties and/or its ri$

of causing cancer;

j. Whether Plaintiffs are entitled to teégtion and if s¢ the appropriate

measure;
k. Whether compensatory, consequdrdiad punitive damages ought to

awarded to Plaintiff and Class members;

l. Whether Plaintiff and the Class aretided to attorneys’ fees and cost

and in what amount; and.
m. Whether Plaintiff and the Class agatitled to declaratory and/or oth
equitable relief.
Federal Rules of Civil Proderre, Rule 23(b)(2) Factors
69. Defendant has acted on gmuls generally applicable to the entire CIg

thereby making final injuricve relief and/or corresponding declaratory re
appropriate with respect to the Class aghale. The prosecutioaf separate action
by individual Class members would createe thsk of inconsistent or varyin
adjudications with respect to individual mbker of the Class that would establi
incompatible standards obnduct for Defendant.

70. Injunctive relief is necessary togwent further fraudulent and unfg
business practices by Defendadioney damages alone wiibt afford adequate an
complete relief, and injutive relief is necessary taoestrain Defendant fron
continuing to conceal the carcinogenic pmtigs of their Rounduproducts and thq

cancer risks posed to consumers.

14
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Federal Rules of Civil Prodare, Rule 23(b)(3) Factors

71. Common Issues Predominate As set forth in detail hereinabov

common issues of fact and law predominzeause Plaintiff's claims are based o

deceptive common course of conduct. WeetDefendant’s conduct is likely to

deceive reasonable consumers and vidlaeCLRA and the UCL is common to all

e,

members of the Class and are the predatmg issues, and Plaintiff can prove the

elements of his claims on a class-wideibausing the same evidence as would
used to prove those elements in indual actions alleging the same claims.
72. Superiority. A class action is superior t&ther available methods for th

fair and efficient adjudication of this ntroversy for at least the following reasons:
a. Given the size of the claims of indiial Class members, as well as
resources of Defendant, few Class memap#rany, could afford to ses

legal redress individually fahe wrongs alleged herein;

b. This action will permit an orderlyral expeditious administration of t

claims of Class members, will f@est economies of time, effort, ar

expense ad will ensure uniformity of decisions;

c. Any interest of Class membersimdividually controlling the prosecutic

of separate actions is not practicaieates the potential for inconsist

or contradictory judgments andowld create a burden on the cc

system; and

d. Without a class action, Class membet continue to suffer damage
Defendant’s violations of lawwill proceed without remedy, af

Defendant will continue to reapna retain the substantial proce

derived from its wrongful and unldal conduct. Plaitiff and Class

members have suffered damages assalt of Defendant’s unlawful at

unfair conduct. This action presemts difficulties that will impede it

management by the Court as a class action.

15
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73. Notice to the Class:Notice can be accomplished by publication
most Class members.

74. Plaintiffs know of no difficulty which will be encountered in t
management of this litigation which woybdeclude its maintenance as a class act

75. Defendant has acted or refused to@tgrounds generallgpplicable to
the Class, thereby making appropriat@afi injunctive relief or correspondin
declaratory relief with respett the Class as a whole.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

76. Based on the foregoing allegations, Ridf's claims for relief include

the following:

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of the Consimer Legal Remedies Act
California Civil Code§ 1/50.et seq
(on behalf of the Class)

77. Plaintiffs herby incorporate byeference each of the precedi

allegations as if fully set forth herein.
78. Plaintiff brings this claim under_California Civil Code1750,et seq.
the CLRA, on behalf of himself and theaSk, who were subject to Defendar

above-described unfair and deceptive conduct

79. As alleged hereinabove, Plaintiff hadtanding to pursue this claim
Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact ankbst money or property as a result
Defendant’s actions &t forth herein.

80. Plaintiff and members of the &s are consumers as defined

California Civil Codesection 1761(d). The Roundup products are goods withir

meaning of California Civil Codsection 1761(a).

81. Plaintiff is concurrently filing tke declaration of venue required
California Civil Code8 1780(d) with this complaint.

16
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82. Defendant engaged in thearketing (including but not limited to week

ads, mailers and POS displays), distiitmu and/or sale othe Roundup, whicl

contains the active ingredient glyphosatedg contains adjuvants, including POEA.

83. In the course of their business, fBedant failed talisclose Roundup’s

y

v

carcinogenic properties and/or its potential to cause cancer, in violation of the CLRA

California Civil Codesection 1750et seq.

84. Defendant violatedral continues to violate the CLRA by engaging| i

the following practices proscribed by California Civil Codection 1770(a) in

transactions with Plaintifand members of the Class, ialn were intended to resu
in, and did result in, the sale of its Roundup products:

a. By failing to disclose Roundup’sarcinogenic properties and/or
potential to cause cancer, argy misleading consumers abo
Roundup’s safety for personal uggefendant is representing Round
has “sponsorship, approval, charactersstingredients, uses, benefits,
guantities that they do not have,” in violation of Civ. C&dE770(a)(5);

b. By failing to disclose Roundup’sarcinogenic properties and/or
potential to cause cancer, and by sasling consumers as to Roundu
safety for personal use, Defemdlais representing Roundup “of
particular standard, quality, or grade . . . if they are of another
violation of Civ. Code8 1770(a)(7); and,

c. By failing to disclose Roundup’sarcinogenic properties and/or

potential to cause cancer, and by sasling consumers as to Roundu

safety for personal use, Defendant‘[g]dvertising gmds or services

with intent not to sell them as adtised,” in violation of Civ. Codes
1770(a)(9).

85. Defendant’'s omissions were materialtivat they would be a substant

factor in deciding whether to buy ao&dup product and were likely to decel

reasonable consumers.

17
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86. Defendant concealed andrtinues to conceal material facts concern

the probable carcinogenic nature of Reundup products. Plaintiff did not know

Defendant’s Roundup products posed the oskancer at the time he purchased
product and, had he been aware of thesderial facts, Plaintiff would not hay
purchased Roundup.

87. Defendant’'s actions adgescribed herein wer@one with conscious
disregard of Plaintiff's rights, and Bendant was wantonnd malicious in its
concealment of the same.

88. Defendant is or should be awddg in 2015, the IARC Working Grou
of the World Health Organization classdfi Roundup’s active ingredient glyphos;i
as a Class 2A herbicide, meaning iprebably carcinogenic to humans; (2) deca
of scientific research and studidsave linked glyphosate to DNA damag
genotoxicity, genomic instability, cell cie dysregulation, and NHL; (3) variol

countries and municipalitiesrbughout the world have banned glyphosate due t

cancer risks; and (4) Monsanto Companyg last several verdis, in which cancer

patients established a caukiak between the use of Roundup and their own canct

89. Defendant’'s wrongful business praets constituted, and constitute,

ing
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continuing course of condugt violation of the CLRAbecause Defendant continues

to sell Roundup while failing to disclosts probable carcinogenic nature, and |
thus injured and continues tgure Plaintiff and the Class.

90. Plaintiff and other members of the €&ahave suffered injy in fact and
have lost money as a rdisof Defendant’s deceptiveoaduct. Plaintiff would not
have purchased Roundup had he known it gpdbe risk of cancer at the time |
purchased it.

91. Pursuant to_California Civil Codg 1780(a), Plaintiff seeks injunctiy

relief compelling Defendant to (1) call all Roundup produs currently in
distribution with their material omission$2) permanently refrain from labeling

selling, marketing and advesing its Roundup products ithe future with thesg
18
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material omissions, and (3Jisclosing on each Roundup product, clearly ;i
conspicuously, that its active ingredienyhosate is a Class 2A herbicide, mean
it is probably carcinogenic to humans. Pl@irand members of the Class shall
irreparably harmed if sucn order is not granted.

92. Plaintiff sent Defendant notice advising Defendant it violated
continues to violate, Section 1770 of theRA (the “Notice”) @ncurrently with the)
filing of this complaint. Tl Notice complies in all respts with Section 1782 of th
CLRA. Plaintiff sent the Notice by CertifleU.S. Mail, return-receipt requested
Defendant at Defendant’s principal placé business. Plaintiff's Notice advise
Defendant it must correct, repair, replameotherwise rectify its conduct and tl
product alleged to be in violation of $®n 1770, including tat Defendant refrair
from labeling, selling, markitg and advertising its Rounguproducts in the futurg
with these material omissions, and pd®vicorrective advertising and provi
restitution to its customers who paid moneypefendant for said products. Howev
Plaintiff advised Defendant that if it failto respond to Plaiiffs demand within
thirty (30) days of receipt of the Noticpursuant to Sections/82(a) and (d) of th¢
CLRA, Plaintiff will amend this complainto seek restitution, actual damages :

punitive damages.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of Unfair Competition Law (UCL) — Unfair and Fraudulent Prongs
California Business and Professions Co@&7200gt seq.
(on behalf of the Class)

93. Plaintiff hereby incorporates byeference each of the proceedi
allegations as if fully set forth herein.

94. As alleged hereinabove, Plaintiff iadtanding to pursue this claim
Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and sdost money or property as a result
Defendant’'s actions as set forth hereigpecifically, prior to filing this action

Plaintiff purchased Roundup for his own pergonse. In so doing, he relied up
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the representations and omissions refeee above and belied Roundup was saf
for personal use, and was not aware o€@scinogenic properties and/or its poten
to cause cancer.

95. Defendant’'s conduct idabeling, selling, mamrting and advertising

Roundup is likely to deceive reasonabsumers. Indeed, reasonable consun

would not pay money for groduct that poses a camncesk, absent adequat

disclosures and proper use instructions.

96. Defendant is aware that its contlus likely to deceive reasonab
consumers.

97. As alleged in detail above, Plaiffitvould not have purchased Round
from Defendant had he knownhad carcinogenic properties and/or posed the ris
cancer at the time he purchased it.

98. The misrepresentations, condu@nd inadequate disclosures
Defendant are material and constitute @rfair and fraudulent business pract

within the meaning of California Business & Professions Gbd&200et seq.

99. Defendant’s business practices, asgateherein, are unfair because:
the injury to the consumer is substanti2) the injury is not outweighed by ar
countervailing benefits toonsumers or competition; and (3) consumers could
reasonably have avoided the injury becaDséendant misled the consuming pub
through inadequate wangs as set forth herein.

100. Defendant’'s business practices ateo unfair because their conduct

labeling, selling, markeatg and advertising Roundupffends established public

policy and is immoral, unethical, oppressivascrupulous or substantially injurio
to consumers. Such public policy is teiito a specific constitutional and statut(
provisions, including California’s consumer protection statutes.

101. There were reasonably available aitgives to futter Defendant’s

legitimate business interests, attigan the conduct described above.
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102. Defendant’s business practices dsged herein are fraudulent becat
they are likely to deceive customers ifelieving that Roundup is actually safe 1

personal use. Defendant knoitsomission of any warnings pertaining to Roundu

iIse

or

p’'s

carcinogenic properties will deceive consusetmo purchasing a product that may

indeed be harmful.

103. Plaintiffs were misled intopurchasing Roundup by Defendan
deceptive and fraudulentduct as alleged above.

104. Plaintiffs were misled and, bacse the omissions were uniform a
material, presumably believedBnhdup was safe for personal use.

105. Defendant’s wrongful business praes constituted, and constitute,
continuing course of conduof unfair competition since Defendant is marketing §
selling Roundup in a manner ligeo deceive the public.

106. Pursuant to section 17203 of the U@aintiff seeks an order of th
Court enjoining Defendanfrom engaging in the uair and fraudulent busines
practices alleged herein in caation with the sale of Roundup.

107. Additionally, Plaintiff seek an order awarding Plaintiff and the C
restitution of the money wrongfully acquitdy Defendant by means of the unf

and fraudulent businessgatices alleged herein.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of Unfair Competition Law (UCL) — Unlawful Prong
California Business and Professions Co@47200.et seq.
(on behalf of the Class)

108. Plaintiffs herby incorporate byreference each of the precedi
allegations as if fully set forth herein.
109. Defendant’s actions, as allegedrdia, constitute illegal and unlawfy

business practices in violation Gh&lifornia Business and Professions C&d&7200,

et seq

21
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110. Defendant is unlawfully labelingselling, marketingand advertising
Roundup. Indeed, Defendanv#lations of the CLRAand the UCL alleged abovs
constitute predicate acts whiclolate the UCL’s ‘unlawful’ prong.

111. Plaintiff was misled because Deffant's misrepresentations a
omissions, described above, were uniformd anaterial. Plaintiff reasonably relied (
those misrepresentations and mateahissions, believing based thereon t
Roundup was safe for m®nal use. Plaintiff was not aware of its carcinogg
properties and/or its pential to cause cancer.

112. Pursuant to section 17203 of the U@aintiff seeks an order of th
Court enjoining Defendanfrom engaging in the uair and fraudulent busines
practices alleged herein in connection wvitie marketing (including ads, mailers a
POS displays), distributtoand sale of Roundup.

113. Additionally, Plaintiff seek an order awarding Plaintiff and the C
restitution of the money wrongfully acquitdy Defendant by means of the unf

and fraudulent businessgatices alleged herein.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf dfimself and on behalf of the membeg

of the Class defined herein, prays for jodnt and relief on alCauses of Action a$

follows:

A.  An order certifying that the action mée maintained as a Class Action;

B. An order enjoining Defendant fromursuing the policies, acts, ar
practices complained of hereiand requiring Defendants to pa
restitution to Plaintiffs andll members of the Class;

Pre-judgment interest from tlaate of filing this suit;

Restitution;

Reasonable attorneys' fees;

mmo 0

Costs of this suit; and

22
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G. Such other and further relief dee Court may deem necessary
appropriate.
JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and the Class byoainsel hereby requesttrial by jury as to all issues

so triable.

Dated: August 6, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

Gillian L. Wade

Sara D. Avila

Marc A. Castaneda

MILSTEIN JACKSON FAIRCHILD &
WADE, LLP

Counsel for Plaintiffs and the Proposed Cla
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